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JUDGI~IBNT OF THE COl,"'RT 

!,:i shr a , J • A • 

This is an appeal fro.;:n t h e judgment of the 
Supreme Court , Suva , in a ca se in which Mohammed and 
Jamila Dean were plaintif f s, Jai Narayan defendant , 
and Khairul Nisha and Aqib and Alim Illian (as executors 
and trustees of Kohammed ~amzan Khan) the Third Party . 
The defendant ' s a p:pea.l is a gainst the decision 
allowing the pl aintiffs' claim for damages a r ising out 
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of a mortGag ee ' s sale of their land at a public auction. 

The Third Party, who had been the highest bidder for the 

Sfu~e land at an earlier public auction but h a d refused to 

complet e tbe purchase , appeals against the decision 

upholdine the defendant's claim for damages a gainst him. 

The tvvo appeals were heard together and it will be 

convenient to call the parties plaintiffs, defendant and 

tee Third Party as i n the Supreme Court judgment. 

The plaintiff s, lessees of 5,540 acres of native 

land at Tag i Tagi about 17 miles from Sigatoka, had 

borrowed £900 from the defendant, a registered money-lender. 

They vvere unable to pay any part of this debt and the 

defendant notified them of his intention to exercise his 

pov,er of sale under a mortgage he had taken over this 

property to secure the advances. Correspondence followed 

between solicitors giving the plaintiffs 9 months' respite. 

The defendant would wait no longer and advised t he plaintiffs' 

solicitor of his decision to sell the land by public aucti on 

on 18th 1'Iay, 1968. The auction was advertised in the Fiji 

Times and broadcast over Radio Fiji. The bid of £ 2,500 

from Ba Ifieat Co. was accepted at t h is auction conducted at 

Si~atoka by a n auctioneer, Abu Bakar Koya. It was later 

discovered tha t the place of auction inserted in the 

advertisemen ts was Tagi Tagi, not Sigatoka, and the sale 

was consequently cancelled. 

The next auction advertis ed for 18th June, 1968 

at Siga toka failed to eventuate beca use of an interira 

injunction granted by the Su:preme Court. The plaintiffs 

failed to pay into court the sum ordered and the injunction 
lapsed. 

The advertiseDent of the next auction appeared in 

the Fiji Times of 24th, 25th and 26th July, 1968 and vms 

in following terms : -
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II Publi c Auction 

Under instructions received from the 
mortgagee under mortgage No . 84422 
Abu Bakar Koya , cf Ba , auctioneer, will 
sell by Public ;~uc tion , on Saturday, 
July 27th at 12 noon Native Lease No . 
3500, Tagi Tagi (Tuvu East part of) 
Tuvu , containing 5540 acres . The sale 
shall be subject to the consent of the 
Native Land Trust Board . For further 
particulars please contact the 
auctioneer. 11 

The auction was conducted at the appointed time 

and place attracting a fair number of bidders. They were 

told t hat each bidder would have to deposi t £ 10 in adva nce 

and that the successful bidder would , in addition, be 
required to pay a deposit of £300 in cash . Biddine would 

appear to have been brisk for some time but, towards the 

end , only two bidders remained in the field Yanktesh and 
Mohammed Ramzan Khan, the Third Party. Yanktesh stoppe d 
at £11,000 anc.. the auc tioneer accepted the Third Party ' s 

bid of £ 11,100 . He also accepted his cheque for £.300 • . 

The def endant and the Third Party both signed an application 

to the Native Land Trust Board for its consent to t his 
sale. Apart from this no sale note or other documents was 

prepared or sib~~ed . 

On 7th August , 1968 the Third Party wrot e to 

IV:essrs I:oya & Co . the defendant ' s solicitors :-

"Sir, 

I \'1ish to bring to your notice that 
I have stopped t he payment for cheque 
EI33516 , which was deposit for the 
auctioned land n/L 3500. 

I have done so to clarify certain 
c cnditions , under which the said l&nd 
was auctioned." 



4. 

On 11th October , 1968 the Native Land Trust 
Board granted i ts consent to the transfer of the lease 

to the Third Party. 

On 13th November , 1968 Messrs Koya & Co . wrote 
to the ~hird Party: -

11 Transfer of J:Tative Lease Jai Nara an 
r:or1i~gee o you - r•i~ ive ease 1:o . 
belonging to ~,~ . I.:rs . Shamsudean. 

·ae are instructed by r.:r . Jai Narayan 
to notify you that i nasmuch as you have 
refused to complete the pu..rchase of the 
above- mentioned property , our client will 
now proceed to sell the same by public 
auction on Saturday the 16th :rove:c:.ber , 
1968 . 

Our client would look to y ou for all 
dar1ages already suffered by him as result 
of your failure to complete the purchase 
of the seid property. " 

The auction of 16th November , 1968 vvas advertised 
in the Fi ji Tim.es of 12th , 13th and 15th Hovember , 1968 

and broadcast over Radio Fiji in Hindusta:ai on 14th, 15th 
and 16th lfovenber , 1968, in the following terms :-

11 Under instructions receivea. :froJ1 the 
:.-~.ortgagee under Ti:ortga.:;e Hw:i.ber 84.:1r22 , 
Abu. J3akar I:oya of :Ba i auctioneer , y;ill 
sell by :?ublic ~\ucti on at Sica tol:a , near 
the :22.2:'ket , on SatuTtluy lfovc:::ber 16 , at 
10 a . ;: . . na-:ive Lease Ho . 3500 , '.Ia.::;i To.gi 
(Tuvu East part of) Tuvu , conta::.!1ine 
5540 acres . The sale cb.2.ll be subj ect to 
the consent o:f the Native Land Trust 
Board. Reserved price of ~3000 payable in 
cash. For further particulars please 
contact the auctioneer. 11 

On 14th Nove:.:1ber , 1968 1.:essrs L:iunro , ·,·:arren, Leys 

and Kermode, on behalf' of the plaintiffs , wrote to Ii1essrs 
Koya c.; Co . enquirins about the sale of the property to the 
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Third Party and requesting cancellation or postponeEent , 

in the meantime , of the auction scheduled for 16th !Tovenber, 
1968 . They received no reply • 

. 
On 16th Nove::ber , 1968 the auction ·,,-2.s conducted 

as advertised and the l and \'las sold to one I ma.mu Dean for 

£3 ,400, th:1t being the highest bid . 

. Plain~iffs co=m1encec proceedin~s for da~aces on 
2nd Septe~ber , 1971 . Befo~e the h earin& star ted on 21st 
A~ril, 1982 , the Third Party , the ~ucti oneer and Yanktesh , 

v1hose evidence might have been of considerable assistance 

to tl1e Court , had all died . 

In his judgraent the l earned Judge held the sale 

to the Third Party on 27th July, 1968 to be a bind ing 
contract and his bid of £1 1,1 00 as representing the proper 

value of the la.ad. He also held tnat in exer cising his 
pov,er of sale at the auction of 16th !Tovember, 1968 the 

defendant failed to exercise r easonable care to obtain a 

proper price . He , therefore , gave judgment in favour of 
the plaintiffs against the defendant i n the sum of $1 5 , 400 , 

it beinc the difference between £1 1,100 ($22 , 200) and 
£3 ,400 ($6 , 800) obtained frora Imamu Dean . He also gave 

judg11ent f or the same sum in fav ou.i~ of the def enda11t 

against the Third Party. 

In addition the l earned Judge reduced the 
auctioneer's coom.i5sion to 21z-% f :ro!i'. 1 o,i which the defendant 
had ch.8.rbed and also allowed the plaintiff 5% inter est on 

$15,400 f row 7th r,Iarch , 1969 to t he date of judgr;ient . 

Costs were awarded i n f avour of the plaintiff 

at:;ainst the defendant and in favour of the defendant against 

the Third Party. 
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The defendant's grounds of appeal are :-

II 1 • THAT the Learned Trial Juclge erred in 
---1--a_w_· -and in ::act in holding that the 

2 . 

Appellant as J::Iort6 agee \-:as negligent 
fn effecting the sale of the Native 
Leasehold property com~rised in 
Native Lease No. 3500 (of v1h.ich the 
First Respondents we re the Registered 
Proprietors) under t'Iortga6 e No. 84422. 

TP, .. AT the Learned Trial Juds e erred in 
----,=---law and in f&ct in holdiUCT that the 

.Ai:;pellant ,:as not entitled to debit 
the First Respondents' account with the 
full coJ':.ll.iss.ion paid to the Auctioneer 
in s elling the s a id Hative Leasehold 
p roperty under the Auction Sale held 
on the 27th July , 1968 and the full 
commission paid to t h e Auctioneer in 
respect of the sale effected by him 
at the Auction Sale held on the 
16th November, 1968 . 

3 . TF~iT the Learned Trial Judge e rred in 
- - --..1,.....a_\_v-and in fact in holding that the 

proper value of the said Native 
Leasehold property at tre time t he last 
Public Aucti on took place (16th Nove~ber ; 
1968) v,as £ 11 ,100. 0 . 0 having regard to 
all the circumstances. 

4 . THAT the Learned Trial Judge er~ed in 
- --1.-a_1i_v_and in fact in hola.ing that the 

land was sold at a gross undervalue. 

5. THAT the Learned Trial Judge erred in 
___ n_o_t..-acting on the evidence-of the 

6. 

independent and material witness 
11r. J. Nalrni toga who testified tha t at 
a l l material times the said Native 
Leasehold land in question was declared 
or included as Part of a ?R0Z:2N AlIBA 
by t.he Government as a matter of 
Government 's Development P olicy and 
could not be dealt with or developed 
without its prior approval. 

THAT t h e Learned Trial Judge ought to --~--h a ve held that having regard to all 
the circumstances and on balance of 
probabilities the said Mohammed Ramzan 
Khan and or Yenktesh were acting 
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collectively or separately as agents 
for the First Respondents when they 
were bidding at the Public Auction 
on the 27th July, 1968 

7. THAT the Learned Trial Judge erred in ...:.....;. ___ _ 
holding that t h e Fi rst Respondents 
vvere e:1ti t led to any interest on a:..1y 
amount av;arded to them as damages. 

8 . TF..AT t h e Learned Trial Judge erred in 
---P-.o- t..-holdinc:-

(a) that having recard to all the 
circumstances :r.=oha::illl.ed Shamshudea.."'1. 
(one of the Respondents herein) 
vms an unreliable witness; 

(b) that the Respondents at no tir::.e 
during the proceedin6 s herein couJ.d 
explain avmy as to why the :First 
Respondents as Plaintiffs in Civil 
Action No . 119 of 1968 were 
challenging the validity of the 
said Kortgage when at the sruae time 
in these proceedin6 s (Civil Action 
No . 245 of 1971), they were 
proceedinc on the basis that the said 
1r:ortgage was valid but r,i th the 
allegation that the Appellant 
exercised his powers of the sale 
neglic;ently vvhen the said Native 
Leasehold property was sold under a 
Public Auction by the Auctioneer 
to the said Imamudean on the 
16th Nove□ber, 1968. 

9 . T::AT the Learned Trial Judge erred in not -=--------awardi ng adequate damaees against the 
Second Respondents or to indemnify the 
Appellant i n full against the :First 
Respondents claim for damages interest 
and ccsts. 11 

The Third Party ' s grounds a.:-·e : -

11 1. In having held that the Respondent did 
not exercise reasonable care to obtain 
a proper price for the said Lease and 
was thereby negligent in exercising his 
:power of sale at the final auction on 
16th Nover.iber , 1968, the learned trial 
Judge erred in l aw and in fact in 
entering judgment for the Respondent 
against the Appellant because: 
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(a) The Respondent v:as not entitled to 
indem.."'1.ity against the Appellant 
for his ovm negligence. 

2 . Iri view of the pleadings and the evidence 
t;;.e ltespondent t.'as not entitled to any 
indennity from the Appellant and the 
learned trial Judg e erred in law and in 
fact in entering judQ:ilent for the Tiespondent 
a58,inst the iippell&.l.t . 

3. By h oldin;; that t l1e i~ppell ant h s.d not 
"repudiated" the aGree:w er:t befcre t?~e 
c:rnnt of c cnse~-!t by the ::a -~ive L2:1d ~rr:.st 
Board t i1e learned. trial Ju.dee erred in l s.w 
~nd in fac t: 

(2) In ::·ailing to appreciate the trt)_e 
e=fect oI t he A~pellant 1 s action in 
s topping pa;y,--:::1ent of the C:.eJ>osi t 
cheq_ue . 

(b) In :failirlG to consider t h e Ap:pella:1t 1 s 
refusal to carry on ~ith or complete 
t he transaction between the da te 
pa;ynent was stopped and the dat e of 
gr2.nt of c cnsent b;;· the l'~a ti ve Lan d 
Trv .. st Board. 

(c) In failinc to consider t he pleadings. 

4 . The learned trial Jud.c:;e erred in l av, and. 
in fact in trea tinG the Thii~d ?arty ' s 
(.Appella~1.t I s) bid. as represe11ting the 
true velue of tl1.e ?lain t iff's l and -v;i thout 
consiclering: 

( i) the reaso~1S and p urp ose for t1.e 
nal:ing o:Z such a bid . 

(ii) the other evid ence :pertainin,:; to 
the value of the l and . 

(iii) why t ~-~e '.::l:iri T'a1~t::,-- (A::;:rpell2-n...J~) 
had failed to complete tl:e s2.le 
2u,.d ::71urc1.12se if he r.'as bid.dins 
for hir.nself a.ad t:1e value 1::2.s a 
fe.ir one. 

5 . '.i.'i1e learned trial Judge erred in law an.a. 
in fact in hold.inG that the b i d of 
£ 11, 100-0-0 by Yenl{tesh vms a genuine b id 
and that Yenktesh nas not put up by t he 
Plaintiff. 
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6 . The l earned trial Jud6 e erred in law 
and in fact in not holding that the 
Appellant ,·:as at all material times 
acting as the agent of and for the 
benefit of t he Plaintiff . 

7 . The learned trial JudGe erred in l aw 
and in fact in beli eving the evidence 
of the Pla intiff v1hen s uch evidence 
Y✓as contradidDry in material particulars 
and unreliable . 11 

Def endan t ' s Gr ound 1. 

The advertisement for the 16th Novenber auction 
gave the acrea5e comprising the nat ive lease but no ot he r 

:particula rs . For these tl:e :prospective buyers 'aere invit ed 
t o contact the a uctioneer without any proper address or 

tel ephone number where he mi ght be contact ed . 

The learned Judge ~ entioned these omissions and 

went on t o say -

11 The adver t isenents clid n ot specify what 
purposes t he l and could be used f or . There 
is absolutely no indication a s to what t his 
land containing 5540 acres is suitable f or or 
ha d be en us ed for . ;?hether it was all hilly 
or forest land or whethe~ any part of the 
land wa s suitable for agricultural purposes 
such a s cane or vegetables or other cash crops 
or for crazing purposes or goat farmi ng . The 
def endant knew the land vms suitable for 
subdivision. He had signed f or t he plaintiff 
a r ough pl an of subdivision of t he l an d 
(Ex.E). Tho evidenc e shov1s t hat the lea se was 
a gr azing l ea se ·;;i t h areas of l a nd suitabl e 
f or a £;ric1..u. t urctl purposes and t21at Claus e 20 
of the lease per .:.i -:: t cd t he l e ssee to convert 
it a s of r ight into an agricultural leas e 
s ubject to payment of appropriate r ental . 
The effect of Cla use 20 v1as n ot expla ined even 
at the auction i tself and the successful 
bidder . Im.anu Dean , says he v:as not aware of 
it until it was expl ained to h i m in Court 
v:hile .::;i vint; evidence • 

• There had been severa l bidders at t he 
previous s ale on 27th July , 1968 . One of them 
bid up to £11 , 000 and others to at least 
£6 , 000 . No attempt v,as made either to inform 
t hese bidders that t he l and was beL.--ig auctioned 
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again or to make a private sal e v;i th 
them. 11 

There v;as, in addition , a n item of informati on 
in the a dvertiseme~t not generally f urnished to prospective 

buyers. It said :-

"Re served price of £ 3 , 000 payable in cash . 11 

This f igure did not have any r el a t ion t o the 

value of the l and which had never been valued for purpos~s 

of sale . Nor did it bear any r elati on t o bids r e ceived 

a t the 27th July auction. Couns el concedes that t h e main 

yurpose of inserting the reserve price wa s t he r ealisati on 
oi the defendant ' s debt, the auctioneer ' s f ees a nd other 

expenses . 

I mamu Dean who purchas ed t he proper ty a t the 
auct ion said :-

"But t h e r eserve }Jrice o:f £ 3 , 000 shov:s it 
does not a pply to a gricultural lease. By 
seeing t hat a dvert isement wi t h reserve 
price of £3 , 000 f or 5 , 000 acres i t shows 
it is not very valuable l and. " 

Apa rt f rom Imamu Dean t h:re we::.:e only two other 
bids , both of about £3 , 200 . 

The l earned J ud2e hel d the ins ertion of the 
r eserve p:rice in -'-he adver tiser..en t t o l:ave had a clepreci a t G2.~_y 

effect on t he value of the property . He als o found the 

t .h.ree da;{s' n otice completely ina dequate for a property 

of t hi s size p~rtic ularly i f the inter ested buyers also 

had to arran ge finance f or payment in ca sh. 

Learned Counsel for the def endant refer red to 

s ection 63 ( 1) of the Land Transfer and Regist ration 

Ordinance 1955 , a pplicable at the t iwe of the sale, 
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which ,:;ives a oortgagee or encUDbrancer pm·,er in case of 

default of payment , to sell "eithar i;O~ether or in lots 

by public auction or by private contract , and either at 
one or several ti.mes , s ub j ect to such terns or conditions 

as the mortgagee or encumbrancer thinl::s f i t , v;i th power 

to vary any contract for sale anc to buy in at any aQction 

or to vary or rescind any contr~ct £or sale or resell 

..,-,i thout being ansr,erable for any loss occasi oned thereby" 

a!ld subm..i ts that this statutory po\·:er ::;iven to a mortgagee 

for the protection of his intcrsts should not ·oe ·.-.-atered 

dmm by i uposi tion upon him a duty akin to tha t of a 

trustee . 

The l earned JudGe dealt at considerable len£ th 

'.7i th ~he law r elating to t h is a spect of a mort&agee ' s 

:power referring to passaBes from r.:cHugh v . Union :Bank of 

Canada (1 913 A.C. 299) Cuckm~re Bri ck Co . Ltd . v . Eutual 

Finance Ltd (1971 2 ·;: . L .R. 1207), Pencllebury v . Colonial 

I.'.:utual Li:Ze Assurance Society Ltd (13 C. L . R . 676) , a nd 

Alexander v . He';{ Zealand Breweries (1974 1 U. Z. L .R . 497) 

and said :-

11 Having ret;urd to these duties of a 
mort 6af;ee and the evidence before oe I am 
satisfied tl18.t the defendant as mortgagee 
end his auctioneer v1ho was his duly 
authorised a&ent , and for r:hose negligence 
the defendant is liable , in exercising the 
pov,er of sale on the 16th llover.iber , 1968 , 
ciu not exercise reasonable care to obta in 
a 9roper ?rice for the s~id l ease . 5e did 
aot in cond ucti11£; such sale behave as a 
reasonable r:ian would behave in :realizin:::; 
::is o·;m pro:pert;y so t~13. t the mortca,.:;or may 
receive ci~edi t f or ti.le fair value o::' t !le 
p::-operty sold r or the f ollor..-ing reasons ." 

Lea rned C:unsel for the defe:!.dant sub~i ts t::.'"at the 

s econd sentence of this passace pl aces too heavy a burden 

upon his client and is erroneous in law . ~ron the judGIJ,ent , 

hcv,ever , it is clear that t:ie learned Jud£;e was .t:1erely 

-[ 
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reit erating ,vhat was said in r.=cHuch v. Union Bank of 

Canada ( 1913 A . C. 2 99 at 3 1 1 ) : -

" It is well settled l av; that it is 
the .duty of a nortcace e r.·hen realizing t he 
n ortgae.;ed property b y s a le to behave in 
conducting such realization as a reasonable 
man would behave in the rea l ization of his 
ovm property, so t h.2. t t he n ortgagor 82.Y 
receive cred i t for t he fair value of the 
proper ty s old. 11 

The decision in Tse K'.';on~ Iam. v. V.'ong Chit Sen 

(1 983 1 ~ .L.2 . 1349), not available at t he tria l of thi s 

case, upholds unequivocally the principle that a mortgacee , 

wi:ile ex ercising his statutory :pmver of se.le, owes a duty 

of care to the mortg8gor v1hom cir c ums tances have pl a c ed 

in his p ower. CI.'he P rivy Council there said Vii th 

concurrence :-

11 Fi nall y in Cuckm.ere Brick Co. ltd_. v . 
~-utu"'l "'1· 11'"'"' 0 8 I ... d ( 1 c 71 ) _n,-, c~ o - - ~ .,,,_· - <:.... ...Ll.v , U • ...J -'•-- • .J r ~ , 

Sal~ on L. J . after considerin£ all th~ 
rel evant authorities incluting the views 
ex::_:;ressed in Kennedy v. De. T::..~ef:ford 
concluded, 1.-:i th the sulJs eq_uent a gree:n.ent 
of Cross and Cairns I -. J J. , a t lJ . S68: 

In. 

nbotb. on :principle C;nd aut ho2.~i ty , 
t iiat tl1e no~ tgagee i n e:;.:erc i sing 
his power of sale does owe a duty 
to take reasonable precautions to 
obt2.iI1 the t rue narke t v a lue o--:Z 
t :1e ::wrtgaged pro:;ier~y at the date 
on v:~:ich h e decides to sell it . 11 

il1.Gtant case 

t:1e defendant i'ell far short of "";;he duty to t2.ke rea sonable 

precautions t o obtain the t rue r.mrket value of the mo1~tgagecl 

property, a conclusion .:fro:o. '.'thich we see no r eason to 

d.iffe:::-. 

There is 21 0 logic in the defendant's contention 

that the pl aintiffs, having raised no objection to the 

advertiseiuent for the 27th July auction which but for the 
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reserved price was in identical terns v:i th that in 

respect of the Hovenber all;ction, carmot complain of 

inadequacies in the latter. Damage to their interests 

resulted from the November auction and that was conducted 

despite v:2.rni:dg from I,Iessrs l.'i:U..'1.TO , Leys & Kermode, the 

plaintiffs ' solicitors, that three days ' notice vms 

extremely short for the sale of a lease containine 

5,540 acres . The fact that no da~age resaited from the 

27th July auction does not, in our view, avai l t:ie 

def end8.nt. 

Vie will next consider the defendant ' s grounds 3, 
4, 5 and 6 dealing with the value of the property v1hich 

were argued together by the defendant ' s counsel. The 
third Party's grounds 4, 5 and 6 a l so relate to the same 
subject, the t wo Covi1sel joining forces to challenge the 

validity of t he learned Judge's finding that the T•hird 

Party 1 s bid of £11 ,1 00 a t the July auction represented 

the proper value of the land at the date. of the NoveLJ.ber 

auction . 

They contend that -

(a) Yanktesh, who bid £11,000 was not a 
genuine buyer, his sole purpose, as the 

plaintiffs' agent , being to bolster the 

price o:f the land beyond the reach of 

serious bidders. 

(b) The Third ?arty, also an acen.t of -:;he 

plai ntiffs ' , v:as there for the Sc.me 

purpose viz. to ensure that no genuine 

s2le takes place. 

(c) I>laintiffs themselves had paid only 

£2,500 for the lease in 1962. 
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(d) The tern of the lease at the date of 

sale had only 4½ years to r un. 

(e) It being a native lease , the l and, or 

· part of it, could go into native reserve 
becoming u.11.available for renewal. 

(f) Though the Agricultural Landlord and 
Tenant Act applied to the land renewal 
CO\JJ..d still, under t h e lecisla tion as 
stood at the date of the auction , be 
refused on nctice that it, or part of 

it , was required by the native ovmers 
for their own use. 

it 

As f or (a) and (b) above , Ya1~[tesh and the Third Party 

having died before the trial, evi dence relating to their 

Part in the JvJ..y auction had to come from other persons 

who either knew them. or who were present at the auction. 

Those witnesses \Vere the first plaintiff him.self, Anvm.r 

Ali , Koya & Co ' s clerk, Mrs . Yanktesh, r,'.Irs Ramzan Khan 

and Babu Ram Sharma, a member of a group of farmers who 

had all egedly chosen Yanktesh to bid on t hei r behalf. 

Anwar Ali ·who represented the mortgagee ' s 

interests at the July auction described hovi i t was 

conducted. After other bidders had dropped out Yanktesh 

wh o v;as standing with the first plainti.:::-f and the Third 

Party continued t o reise t heir bids. He said: -

11 I recall Yanktesh because t here 
was somet;:iing funny going on . T'.'.:r. Dean 
was signalling r.Ir. Yankte sh with his 
hand to go further up in the bidding. 11 

Yanktash ' s wife Eimla ',Ya t i also said. that the 

day before t he July auction the f irst plaintiff had v i sited 

them in t l~e afternoon and asked Yankt esh to go to the 
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auction to raise the price of the l and . In r eturn he 
y;as to get some land somewhere after t he property had 

been s old . 

Ramzan Khan ' s wife Khairual Nisha , a person 

who gave her a ge a s more than one hundred years , also 
remembered the first plaintiff visitin6 her h ouse in the 
afternoon of the day bef ore t he auction and a ski ng her 

husband " to save it s o::nehov,·11 from which she understood 
him to mean the land due to be auctioned . To this her 

husband had r epli ed , "I will see" . 

The f i rst pl a i nti ff strongly deni ed these 

al l ega tions . The Thi rd Party , he said , was not even on 
s peaki ng terns with him at the time owing to the exercise , 
some time earlier , by him of his pmvers under a bill of sale 

to seize the plaintiffs ' chattels . As f or Yanktesh , he 
described the interest a broup of farmers , Yanktesh bei ng 
one of t hem , had shown for some t i me in purchasi ng the land 

in question . This was substantiated by t::c. Gordon , a 

solicitor , who had , under their instructions , wri tten -to 

the Native Land '.Irust Board to enquire what part, if any , 
of the l and was to be included in the native reserve . 

Babu.ram Sharma , a member of this group , cave 

evidence in detail of tbis 6roup ' s interest in the land. 
They had i nspected the lai~d. and were determined to 

purchase i t . The first pl a i ntiff ' s origi nal :price was 
£20,000 but , i n view of the likelihood of losins the 

l and , he had r educed it to £ 10 , 000 . They went to see 
l'.:..r . :S .K. I•illay, a s olicitor , and found that "the land 

v.ras being auc tioned . They decided , on r.:r . Pill ay ' s advice , 
to attend the auction and :for tl:is :purpose they chose 

Yanktesh and L~uruGessan :Reddy, r1i th inst r uctions to bid 
up to £ 11 , 000 . By that time they had collected £6 , 000 

aaa. wer e to raise the renainder l ater . 
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!ix . B. K. P illay had also died before the 

trial. Cf the evidence of Babu.ram Sharma , the le2rned 

Jud.ge said :-

"He v:as thoroughly cross-examined. I 
take• into account the fac t th2t he r;as 
t_1iving evidence of ev ents t ].1at had t a.ken 
pl ace over 15 years earlier. I found 
him a r eliable 2nd truthful vii tness and 
I accept his evi ~ence to be true . He 
said that shortly aft er the auction the 
~]:ird Party called him to his house end 
offered to sell ~he s c id l ease to 
Eabu.rarn Shc::.rma •s c roup at a profit . 
Babu.ra:u:. Sharma rejected the offer and 
said he ~as not i nterested in buying it 
f r o:r.1 hi.L:i . It is clear fr om h is evi dence 
-chat at that s~age the T:,_ird Party v;as 
tryinG to make a profi t out oi the 
resale of the land." 

The Judce after reviewing the evidence in 

considerable detail found Yanktesh to hc:ve been a Genuine 

bidder at the auction a nd the Thi1~d Party , slso a i;enuine 

bidder , to have purchased the land with a vievv t o 

extracting a higher price l ater f rom t~i s interested 

group of farmers. He re jected the clain t~2 t e ither 

~anktesh or the Third Party v✓as a n a t;ent of the first 

plaintiff . 

Counsel f or the de:;:ena.ant and .:.t.e Third Party 

have drawn this court I s attention to numerot:.s cliscre;,ancies 

and apparent contradi ctions in -~he evide::ce cf ~.,l'rn f irst 

:9l2.L1ti:f:f a.i'.ld Babur~m SharIJa a21d sub::-.i tteC:. t.hu t , under 

the c i rcv.mstr.. nces , it •;. ov.lcl be proper for t.his c.: 01).rt -~o 

reverse t:lis fi::£.inr; of fact by the lear:-1ecl Judge. ::..he 

headnote in ::Jen.max v . .f,ustin I\:otor Co . Ltd . (19 55 1 All 

reads :-

v,t.ich t:1ey cite in support of tl:eir subnission, 

" An appellate court , on an appeal 
from a case tried b efore a judge a l one , 
should not l ic-~tl y differ from a finding 
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of the trial judge on a ~uestion of 
fact, but a distinction in this 
respect must be dravm between the 
perception of facts c:.nd the evaluaticn 
of facts. Where there is no question 
of the credibility of witnesses, but 
t he sole ~uesticn is the proper 
inference to be drawn fro:n specific 
facts, an appellate court is in as 
good a position to evaluate the 
evidence as the trial jud~e, and should 
fo:rr:: i t s own independent o;,inion, 
though it y;ill .::;ive wei:;ht to the 
opinion of the trie.l judge . 11 

'.l'he evidence here, however, rai ses _primaril y, 
if not solely, tl':e c;_uestion of credibi lity of v:i tness es 

who were describin2; from memory events occurring fifteen 

years earlier. It vrnv.ld be completely outside the scope 

oi' the rule in Benmax v . Austin Motor Co . :f or an appellate 

court to hold that such a witness , accepted as reliable 

a nd truthful by the t rial Judge , had given fabricated 

evidence. On the evidence before him, and on his analysis 

of it, t he learned Judge in this case was entitled, and. 

indeed correct, to find that neither the Third Party nor 

Yanktesh was , at t h e July auction , acting as the f'irst 
plaintiff's agent . 

The question , however , still remains : vms t h e 
Third Party ' s bid of .£11 , JOO the true market value of 

the l and at the date of the November sal e? It i s true 

t hat the plaintiffs had :pa id only £2 , 500 for it six years 

earlier but the transaction w2s between the plaintiffs 

and t~e second plaintiff 1 s brothJr and there is no 

evidence of any plan of developrr:e1n bein,:; in exist ence 

at the tine whereas, by 1968 , the plaintiffs had cievised 

a scheme of sub-division a pproved in principle by the 

Native Land Trust Board. The plaintiffs themselves, on 

the evic.ence, were completely unable to i mplement it but 

the possibility of several titles combined with agricultural 

use h ad definite poteDtiul of v1hi ch some interested buyers 

like Yanktesh's group of farmers would have been aware. 
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The price of £2 ,500 pai d ~or the property in 1962 was, 

t herefore, no satisfactory basis for assessing the 

market value of that l end in 1968 . 

The other tvrn factors v iz. the reuaining tern . 
of the lease and the possibility of the lanl Joing into 

native reser ve v;ere of considerable mo!llent . ~he land 

came under the provi sions of the l'i~riccl t ural La:1:il ord 

and Tenant Act, as it stood in 1968, anC: potential buyers 

wot:J_c_ h2ve knovn.1 t h [·. t only t .he l a n d tiOt rec.._uired by the 

na tive o, mers for t :.·~eir o·.·.·n use r,ould be avai le.ble f or 

furt her l ee.sing . 

It was thi s very i nfomation that Yanl-ctesh ' s 

c roup of farmers sou~ht from the Native La nd Trust Board 

through L'.:.r . Gordon. Irnamu Tiean h i nsel f had obtained this 

information from t he Cooperatives Depart:cent . I t was 

lrnovm to persons interested in t he purchr,se of t h is land 

that only a snall portion , 300 to 400 acres, would be 

required :for the use of na:ti ve ovmers , the re:sainu.e r 

being available for renevval. That vveuld , i n our v i ew , 

have b een the sta te of lu10wledge of potential buyers 

i nterested in the l and in November 1968 . 

The de fendant , however, call ed a v:i tness , {..Tone 

lfae q_e Nakai toga, w110 wa s i n 1968 a l and a.g ent employed by 

t !::e Ea ti ve Land Trust :Board ancl based a t Siga toka . i-Ie 

v,as also membe r o:f a devel op:rient Comr'..i ttee chaired by the 

locnl ~ istri ct Cffi cer . ~ othing in the evidence indicates 

t h e exte:1t of this col:lII!i ttee ' s aut~1ori ty or its ex2ct 

fi.;,.nc tions . '.l'here i s 1:.0 su6gestion , hov.rever , that it could 

take over any of the functions of -che ?btive Land ~I'rust 

:Boa r d or exercise any of its p owers ove r nativ e land . 

This vr.i. tness said that the whol e gener a l area in which 

t:1e mortgaged l o.nc:l 1,vas s ituated ':ms earmarked for 

:.~e- aff ores ta tion 2nd "frozen" meaning thereby, presumably, 

that new applicaticn s f or l and in t h is general area for 

agricultural purposes wer e not being entertained owi ng to 
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the development co1I1II;ittee ' s r ecommendation as to its fut ure 

use . \'Then asked a bout tJ::e Cooperatives Department 's 

devel opD8nt proposals f or the mort£a5ed land he said :-

11 ::E-t wc:s not brou.c;ht to r:,y office . Suva 
office v:a s handlinc all dealings v:i th 
t his l ec. se . 11 

And a gain :-

"Durin;; r1hol e per iod I ·:.as in 3i;;& tol:a . 
I had nothing to ci.o \;i th this land as 
far as I r et.-:.eober . 11 

He also conceded that the fact of any l a nd 

beine frozen had not been nade l:nov:n to the ceneral 

public. 

1he defendant ' s counsel r efers to the l earned 

Jud~e ' s omission in his judgment to make any reference to 

t.tis ,·:i t n ess I s evidenc e and invites us on ihe a uthori ty of 

Gopal Gosai v . Ram Dass (FCA 1 of 58) to treat it a s a 

defect fatal to the learned Judge' s assessment of the 

proper value of the land . We do not consider that 

dec i sion to have any application to evidence oi thi s 

nature . Nakai tosa had conceded that all dealings 

concerning the l and i n question were handled by the Head 

Office of ihe Na ti ve Land Trust Boe.rd wl:ose .. :eneral 

secretary himself t estified tha t approval in princ i pl e 

of subdivision of this l and had in fact been granted . 
Nal-:a i to,:a also l:new that part of thi s l e nd had c;one i nto 

native reserve , a fact that was als o knovm to persons 

interested in purchasin g the l a nd . The general Secretar y 

of the Native Land Trust Boa r d ha a. made no menti on of the 

mort gaged land , or any native l and , beine "fro zen" , 

vrha teve r that tern means . 

In Gopal Gosai v . Ram Dass there was a dir ect 

contra diction on t h e main issue between what the plaintiff 



20 . 

was claiming and what was asserted by the solicitor ' s 
clerk ,·:ho had made the document rela tini:; to a sale . 

I n thi s ca se ther e i s no such contradiction, Nakai toga 
h i mself admitti ng th~t he had never handl ed any matter 

r elatinf. to the mor tgaged land . rurthermore , there v:as 
no disagi~een:.ent betv:een the plaintiff ' s r:i t nesses and 

Imamu Dean h imself a s to the area knovm to _pot entia l 

buyers to have gone in~o native reserve . We do n ot , 

theref ore , consider the learned Judge ' s omission to 
cowL1ent on T':akai t oga ' s evidence to be a serious flav, in 
the judgw.ent ; nor do we consider an evalvztion of that 

evidence by this c oLrrt , which this c ourt has certai.P..ly 
attempted to do , to have any sib~1i f i cant impact on the 
i ssue of value . 

We acc ept the De::::'enclant ' s Counsel ' s s ubmission 
thc.t any restrictive co:1di ti.on or sta·tutory provi s ion 
mus t necessaril y have a di minishing effect on value . 

Thes e , in this case , ·were the short r em£tini:::ie ter m of 

the lease c:.nd t.re a r ea unavailable .for renewal , both known 
to potent ial purcha sers . 'The area reqv.ired for native 
owners could , of cours e , vary i f not i ce to t his effect 

under the provisions of the Agricult ura l Landlord a nd 
Tenant Act , then i n f orce , were g i ver_ to the l essee . As 

t hin6s , however , stood at the date of the sale potential 
purcha sers would rely on t he in.formation furnished by the 

:ifa tive Land '.I-rust Bo:1r d , t he sol e aut hority ove r such 

matt ers . 

Th ere was no evidence oi comparable sal es i n 

the area . '.Ihe only evideace of value consisted of pri ces 
actual ly offered by Yanktesh and t he Third Party at the 

July auction and the l ear ned J udge , having held t hat they 
were genuine bi dders , \,1as correct in t aki n~ tliose prices 
as indications of market value . ~!e also took into a ccount 

that the nex t h ighest bid bel ov,i those t wo was £6 , 000 . He 

decided that the price offered by the Third Party was the 

true value of l and . He , howeve r , a lso found t~at the 

70 
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Third Party was a mere speculator in land v1110 having 
failed to resell it at a pr ofit r efused to compl ete 

t :-. e contract with the defe~1.dant . This , to our mind , 

is not a satisfactory basis for assessing what a will ing 

genuine bu.fer v1ould pay. Baburam Sharma ' s evidence was 

that they were, at the auction , prepared to go as high 

as £ 11 , 000 but no higher . '.l.'h~t vms their limit under 

pressure of competitive biddinG, the sole competitor 

in this case being the ihird Pa.::·ty , an unsuccessful 

s_pecula tor. I·he vc:.lue they themselves h au placed on the 

land afte r thorough inspection and assessment of its 

pote~tial wns £10 , 000 a price acceptable to the plaintiff . 

But for t he abortive aucti on , t hat was the price at which 

the land would have bee.n sold and r,re consider tha t to be 

the correct basis for assessing the true market value of 

the mo~tgaged l and at the date of the sale, there being 
no evidence o:f diminution of values betv1een July and 

November, 1968 . 

The appeal, to that extent , is allowed and t-he 

value of l and reduced from £11 ,100 to £10 , 000 . 

Ground 2 deals with the question of the 

auctioneer ' s commission which the learned Judcie reduced 

from 10% to 2½% but allowed in respect of both the July 

as well as the November auction. The defendant submits 

that section 64 of the Land '.11ransfer and Ttegistration 

Ordinance (1955 Laws of Fiji) which applied in 1968 
authorise s the deduction from the 9urchase money expenses 

of the s~le and that the auctioneer's fee paid by the 
mortgagee w2s such an expense . In his v11ri tten submission 

Cot,msel says :-

" This s e ction, it is submitted , does ::1ot 
in any way put any constraint on t he 
mortgagor so that he is liable to refund 
expenses incurred which are unreasonable 
and excessive ." 

7/ 
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It is true tha t the \';ording of the s ec tion 

does not do so , but we are s&ti sfi ed t~at the duty of 

care t hat the law kposes upon a morte:;agee must extend 

to expenses under s ection 64 in the s aoe way as i t does 

to section ·63 v:hich empowers him t o sell the mortga,:ed 

:property 11without bein5 answer able f or any l oss". He 

must under section 64 hav e reasonable reG~rd to tha 
interests of t he mortga~or s o as not t o eat unreasonably 

into the surplus to ·.-:h:i.ch he v:ould "te entitled . 

In the instant case the l earned Judge accepted 
the evidence of t h e aucti one e r Joseph that his services 

had , at t i nes , been used by the defendant aud that in case 

of l and of t h is s ize he would have char ged 2i1, plus 

expenses . £e nor~ally charged 5% for cattle ~nd 10% for 

cbatt.als 2.nd f un1i ture . 

Th ere \;as no evidence to sul:;,:est that in Fiji 
auctioneer s ' fees are regulated by lav: . In our v iev; a 

com.~ission of 10~ on a sale of l a r ~e a r eas of l~ni 

i nvol ving bi:S suns of :9v..rch2: se moneys is exorbitant . We 

see , theref or e , no reason to di sturb t~e finding of the 

lea rned Juda;e on t 2:is issue . 

Ground 7 compl ains o:f interest of 5;-~ allowed to 

the pl aintiff under the Law :aeform (r,.:iscellaneou s 

Provisions) (Death ~nd I nterest) Act on the c round ~einly 

of del 2y on the part oi the pl a intiff in p~osecutin~ his 

clr.in . :1::ie c..e l a y , hor,evor , Es t~"'..e Jud~:e f Olill.d ·:.as not 

ent irely d '-le to f:n,.J. t en tha ple. i nti:.:'f ' s _;isrt o.nd. in any 

case no s t e ps a ppear to heve b een t aken by t he defendant 

to expedite the proceedings . The power under the statute 

to 2l low in-Lerest is discretiona ry [!11d i t \•'las not , i n cur 

view, unreasonably exercised. 

Ground 8 relates to cred.ibili ty o:f the first 

pl a int iff as a i,itness. Vie have already dealt with this 

issue in our treatment of the q_ues tion whether or not 
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Yanktesh and the Third Party were acting as the first 

plaintiff 1 s agents at ihe July auction. First plaintiff 

was undoubtedly an interested party and his testi mony 

had to be approa ched with caution. The lea rned Judge 

accepted his evidence largely where it was supported by 

Babu.ram Sharma whom he relied upon as a witness of truth . 

On the issue of value the learned Judg e did not acc ept 

the f irst plaintiff 's own estimate of £ 20 , 000 as the true 

~arket v a lue. Cn negliGe nce, t~e only other important 

issue , there were othe r witnesses such as t he auctionee r 

Jos eph and the d efendant ' s ovm witness Imamu Dean whose 

evidence indicated inadequacy of time a llov,ed a nd 

particulars g i ven by the adverti sement . The f irst 

plaintiff ' s lengthy cross- examination by counsel contains 

numerous discrepancies and some damaging admissions but , 

on the main i s sues requiring determination , those 

d iscrepancies and admissions could not , in our view , have 

made any significant difference to the eventual out co~ e . 

We , therefore , propose to say no more on this ground . 

The defendant ' s l a st ground can, more a ppropriately 

be con sidered with the Th ird Party ' s Ground 1 , which also 

raises the i s s ue of damages a warded in favour of the 

defendant . Though the g round of appeal use s t h e \·1ord 

"indemnity" the judgment itself is in following terms 

"As to the defendar1t ' s claim against the 
Third Party there will be judgment for 
the ciefendant a gain st t he Third Party 
for $15,400 daL1ages . 11 

The fi.;ure $15 , 400 represented in dollars t:ie 

d i fference between the prices obtain ed at the July and 

November elections respectively. 

The mortgage debt and expenses of sale were 

fully covered by the p rice of £3 , 400 obtained at the 

November auction and, to that extent , the defendant 

suffered no damag e at all. His claim f or damages consists 
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of the amount he now has to pay to the plaintiff f or 

his failure at the Ifovem.ber auction to obtain the true 

market price. The learned Judge held the July agreement 

to ptrrchase to be valid a nd binding and the Third Party 

liable in qamages in r espect of i he loss suffered by the 

defendnnt. He, however, also held the d efendant to be 

negligent in failing to t ake necessary ~recautions to 

obtain the true market value viz . £ 11, 100 . In Janal v. 

Moolla Dawood, Sons~ Co. (1~16 A. C. 175, at 179) the 

Privy Council s a id :-

"It is undoubted law that a plaintiff 
who sues fo r damages owes the duty of 
taking all reasonable steps to mitigate 
the loss consequent upon the breach and 
cannot claim as damages any sum which 
is due to h is own neglect." 

The l earned Judge in this case found nothing to 

suggest a drop in values of land between July and November 

and found t he defendant liable to pay the full d ifference 

between £11,100 and £3,400 . .AJ.1y loss, therefore, suff ered 

by the defendant was entirely due to h is own f a ilure to 

take reasonable steps to miti gate it. We concur with the 

Judge's finding of neglect on the part of the defendant 

but, having done that, we are u....-1.able to agree that t h e 

Third Party should be held liable to compensate him f or 

l oss resulting from that neglect. 

The Third Party ' s ground 1, consequently, 

must succeed. 

There is, however, another question, raised in 

7f 

the Third Party's grounds 2 and 3 which causes us soree 

concern. The s ale agreement between the defendant and the 

Third Party was entered into on 27th July 1968 both parties, 

on that day, signing the application f or the Native Land 

Trust Board's consent under section 12 of the Native Land 

Trust Act which renders null and void any dealing in 
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native land by a lessee without prior consent of the 

Native Land Trust Board. This consent was granted on 

11th October 1968. The learned Judge said:-

"P~nding the granting of consent of the 
Native Land Trust Board this agreement, 
of course, remained incohate (sic) or 
inoperative: D.B. Waite (Overseas) Ltd 
v. Sidney Leslie Wallath, :B'iji Law 
Reports Vol. 18 p . 141 . 11 

He, however, held that both parties treated the 

agreement as remaining on foot until after the consent 

had been granted and found the Third Party guilty of 

breach after the agreement had become operative and 

binding. Counsel fori.he Third Party contends that the 

agreement had been completely repudiated by the Third 

Party before 11th October, 1968 and that on tha t date 

there was no agreement which could be made operative by 

the Board's consent. The question before this Court in 

D.B. Waite v. Wallath was , as Gould V. P . put it, 

"whether it (the agreement) vvas binding, pending the 

consen t of the Native Land Trust Board or whether 

lawfulness d epended on its reI:J.a.ining inoperative so tha t 

eit her party could repudiate it at willn. All the 

three Judges there came to the conclusion that in such 

circumsta nces no element of enforceability, as far as it 

touched the land, could be att ributed to the a g reement 

without contravening section 12 of t he Native Land Trust 

Act. We accept, and Counsel for the defendant concedes, 

this proposition to be correct in law and t h e only issue, 

therefore, is whether the repudiation by the Third Party 

occurred bef ore or after 11th October,1 968. In this 

reg2rd Counsel f or the Third Party refers to the letter 

dated 20th January , 1969 from Koya & Co . to Munro, 

r~'arren, Leys & Kermode in vlhich appears the follov-.;ing : -

"The consent was obtained but before the 
receipt of such consent, I,Ir. Khan 
categorily inf'ormed us t hat he purchased 
the property as duly authorised agent of 
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your client Kr . Sham.sud- Dean 8nd in 
the circumstances h e wished to be 
released from the contract. We refused 
to accede to his request and subsequently 
he stopped payment on the cheque . 
Despite several requests r,:rr. Khan 
refused to comnlete the deal. On t he 
13th November, 1968 we gave a written 
notice· to I\'Ir. Khan. 11 

If this is correct , and it should be treated 

as a n admission by ~he defendant adverse to his own 

interest, then the repudiation was before the consent, 

there being no question of refusal to release the Third 

Party from an a greement which was not binding upon him 

any v-,ay. l, cateborical intimation of refusal to proceed 

with the agreement followed immediately by stopping of 

payment on the cheQue, in our view, constitutes a 

s ufficient act of repudiation . 11:rue, that t he Third 
Par ty 's letter of 7th August , 1968 to Koya & Co. s p oke 

of need for further clarification of conditions of sale 

as the reason for stopping encashment of the cheque but 

no clarification was ever sought an d the deposit remained 
unpaid . The reason for repudiati on , according to the 

letter from Koya & Co. to :Munro, Warren, Leys & Kennode, 

given by the Third Party that he was merely acting as an 

agent, was held by the Judee to be false. But, in our 

view, it is the fact of repudiation, not its reason, 

that is relevant. 

There is, h owever , evidence of the Third Party 

offering t h is l and a fter the auction to Bsburam Sharma a t 

a hieher price . At that date he must be taken as treating 

the agreement as being on foot. Unfortunately there is 

no precise date given for their meeting , as might well be 

expected of a farmer describing occurrences 16 years old. 

Accordin6 to his evidence the Third Party first called 

him to his house one weel: before the July auction and 

offered t o sell hi m a piece of freehold land belonging 

to him. Three weeks after this first meeting he called 

7-6 
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him again to offer him the mortgaged land at a price 

higher than his purchase price. In between these two 

meetings the auction of 27th July had taken place . 

From this evidence it seems to us more probable than 

not that the second meeting took pl a ce at about the time 

of the Third Party ' s meeting with the defendant's 
solicitors and his l etter of 7th August, 1968 stopping 
payment on the cheque . The imprecise nature of this 

evidence as to dates is not sufficient , in our view , to 

dislodge the effect of a precise and cogent admission by 
the defendant ' s counsel who wov.ld normal ly have a record 
of these events . The noti ce of 13th Nove~ber 1968 sent 
to the Third Party indi cating the defendant ' s decision 

to resell and claim da!Ilages would have legal significance 
only if there was repudia tion of a binding a greement . 

If ' repudiation ' occurred before the Native Land Trust 

Board ' s consent, there would be no agreement l eft to 
rescind . 

Similarl y S . B. Patel & Co's letter of 15th · 
November, 1968 to the Native L and ~L'rust Board saying that 
the Third Party , las not interested in purchasing the land 

cannot lead us to the inf'erence that until that date he 

trea t ed the agreement a s subsis t ing i f , in fact, he had, 
before the agreement became operative , already categorically 
indicated to the defendan t ' s solicitors that he was not 
completing it ~nd had stopped payment on the cheque . "i/e 

must accept the admission to this effect by the 

defendant's own solicitors v.'ho ·were in a position to knov, 
the exact sequence of events to be the best evidence on 
the i ssue . 

\'fe, theref ore, conclude that , repudiation having 

occurred before the agreement betv•i'een the defendant and 

Third :Party became operative , there v:as no brea ch that 

could give rise to a claim for damages . 

The Third Party must succeed on this ground 

also . 
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In the result , the damages awarded against 

the defendant are reduced from $15,400 to $13 , 200 , 
interest being payable on the latter sum. The 

auctioneer's commission , calculated on t he actual 
prices of \he two sales , will remain unaltered. The 

costs of this appeal, as between the pl ainti ffs and 

t ~e defendant , will be taxed , if not agreed , on the 
basis that the defendant's appeal has been partly 
successful . 

The judgment entered against the Third Yarty 

is wholly set a side and he is to have costs against the 
defendant in this court as well as the court below . 

:J r, 
, ~ ' ~ . . . . . . . . ,, .... ... .. . .... . 
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